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KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Ashburn Hall is a handsome, restrained Greek Revival plantation house, sensitively 
renovated and well maintained Its appearance is little changed from that sho1-VI1 in a 
turn-of-the-century documentary photograph. The house stands amid outbuildings and large 
trees in a pleasant, 'rolling rural section of Vance County. Among the notable outbuildings 
--all frame--are the meat house, well house, a couple of small dwellings or kitchens with 
chimneys, and two barns. 

The main house is a substantial two-story, three-bay T-shaped frame structure with two 
features very unusual in the eastern Piedmont: the pedimented. bay windows that occupy 
the flanking bays of the first level of the facade, and the exposed face interior end 
chimneys that rise on either side of the'house. lVith these exceptions, the house is a 
very representative example of the Greek Revival plantation house expressive of the 
growing wealth of the northeastern Piedmont in the 1830-1860 era. 

The facade is defined by a heavy baseboard from which rise cornerposts treated as 
symmetrically molded pilasters with stmple caps. These carry a broad, plain entablature 
beneath the overhang of the gable roof, ~vith a srrnple cornice that returns slightly into 
the gable ends. ' Dominating the facade is a broad, one-story pedimented entrance portico, 
its pediment carried on four rather widely spaced, paired fluted Tuscan columns. Engaged 
pillars recur at the facade at the ends of the porch. The entrance sheltered by the porch 
consists of a double door with sidelights, transom, and cornerlights, sepa.rated by heavy 
moldings. The bay windows on either side ::repeat the pedimented motif of the porch. 
Panels occur beneath long, vertical windows; over each bay '\vindow are 3....11 entablature and 
pediment with molded cornice. ' The second level features broad windmvs topped ,·lith 
simplified entablatures. The centr?-l window is' a triple one; the flanking ones of normal 
conftguration. ,Eight-over-eight sash is used, and windows are fitted with blinds .. 

The ends of the house are windowless, interrupted only by the interior end chimneys 
whose face is'exposed,tonearly the level of the top of the second-level windows; the 
chimney stack, with molded cap, rises as an interior chimney a small distance from the 
end of the'roof. 

1 ( 

To the rear projects the ell creating the T form of the house.. The two-story height 
of the ell is some'\vhat shorter than the front portion, and the chimney rising at~its rear 
is an exterior one. Porches and additions have expanded the rear of the house consid­
erably. 

The spacious interior of the house consists of two rooms in the front section, 
separated by a central hall and, in the rear ell, a cross hall, containing the stair aIld 
leading to a large rear room. The finish is consistently of a simple but distinctive 
Greek Revival character of considerable force and clarity. A vigorous crossetted 
molding is employed in the door frames from the hall into the left parlor and in that 
room IS mantel and cloor and window frames. Other door and window frarrres are of the 
standard Greek Revival type \'lith bold, syrrrrnetrically molded strips joining at corner 
blocks. 'Window frames typically extend to the floor and frame panels beneath the windows. 
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In the front bay windows of each parlor, the nearly full-length windOll/s extend' to the 
high baseboard 

Mantels in remaining rooms feature molded or fluted pilasters and heavy entablatures 
enriched with moldings. Walls are plastered above heavy molded baseboards. The stair, 
which. rises in the rear cross hall, has simple posts and newel square-in-section, and 
thin square balusters which carry a rounded handrail. The open string is ornamented with 
very simple curvilinear brackets. Throughout, the house has been renovated with sensi­
tivity, so that the simplicity and vigor of the Greek Revival finish is enhanced, as well 
as the openness and spaciousness of the large, high-ceilinged rooms with their large 
windows and bay windows. 
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Ashburn Hall is a handsome, representative example of rural domestic Greek Reviv~l 
architecture, one of the best-preserved of several Greek Revival plantation houses in 
the northeastern Piedmont, an area that flourished in the antebelltun years. Unusual 
features of the house include the twin peditl1ented bay wind01·l{s and exposed face interior 
chimneys. Presumably built for George or vVilliam A. Eaton in the l840s or early l850s, 
the house was the seat after 1862 of prominent planter Baldy Ashburn Capehart, in whose 
family it remained until the mid-twentieth century. 

George Eaton obtained a large section of about 1,300 acres in Granville, later Vance, 
County from Thomas DeverellX of Raleigh in September of 1840. He paid $2,000 for the 
tract He farmed the land with the help 9f sixty slaves.. Mter farming this land 
for six years, he sold it to his brother WilliaTtl A. Eaton on August 1, 1846; it is 

possible that either George or William A. Eaton had the house built. 

William.Eaton; like his' brother, was a·planter of some prominence in antebellum 
Granvil~e County. Eaton' was' born" in '1813, the son of John S. Eaton,' also of Granville 
COLmty. He was married December 17, 1834, and by 1850 had four children. Eaton 
continued farming the land, maintaining an establishment of eighty slaves in 1850. He 
owned 1,475 acres, of which 600 were improved. Only one other land01vner in the Fishing 

. Creek township owned more cultivated .land. Eaton f s land ,vas valued at abnost seven 
thousand dollars. Eaton was a staunch Episcopalian, long active in the 'affiars of the 
smEll, rural St. James Episcopal Church. He repres3nted the tiny congregatio11 at the 
state Episcopal convention in 1853, 1856, and 1857. In the summer of 1862 Eaton sold 
this tract of land to Samuel ~1:::Lean of Virginia. McLean kept the !and for only a few 
months, however, selling it to B. A. Capehart on November 3, 1862 

Baldy Ashburn Capehart, son of Tristram and Buta Capehart, was born in Murfreesboro 
on July 4, 1833. (Presumably the name Ashburn Hall comes from the family n~1e Ashburn, 
Capehart's middle name.) He attended the University of North Carolina, receiving an 
A. B. degree in 1853. He moved back to l\'1urfreesboro, where he was prominent in a 'local 
Episcopal church. It is unclear when he moved into Granville COl.mty but when he joined 
the Confederate Anny in 1862 he listed Granville as his home county. Capehart was an 
officer in the l5th,Battalion of the North Carolina Cavalry, of which he later wrote a 
history for Clark's Regiments. He wascappointed captain on October 22, 1863, and was 

-------- J present lillti1 the latter part of 1864. 

Like Eaton who held the plantation before him, nUJch of Capehart's interest in 1864 
and 1865 seems to have been focused on his church. Just before the war the rural St. 
James Episcopal Church was relocated near Kittrell The war enforced great hardships on 
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the tiny church, of course, and Capehart expended great energy in keeping it alive. The 
first rector of the church, Reverend M. M. Marshall, lived with the Capeharts while he 
was in Kittrell. Capehart also allowed the Reverend Harshall to baptize slave children 
in his house on at least t'ivO occasions, both in 1864. Capehart attended th5 Episcopal 
convention as a lay delegate on behalf of his ch~rch in both 1864 and 1865. 

Capehart used his tract to become one of the area's most prominent planters. He 
utilized his large faun in the production of Irish potatoes, sweet potatoes, tobacco, 
apples, peaches, corn, oats, wheat, cotton, and cattle products. He apparently did 
not enter the business world, but did, h01vever, serve Granvi7le County as chief judge 
of the Granville County Inferior Court from 1877 lmtil 1881. . 

In 1895, following the death of his first wife, he remarried. His wife, the 'h'eal thy 
',vidow of P. T. Henry, was, at the very least, his social and financial equal. She ,'las 
the daughter of B. F. Moore, an extremely prominent lmvyer who died in 1881. According 
to the Henderson Gold Leaf, the marriage of B. A. Capehart and Lucy £/loore Henry united a 
lc:dy of "hIgh accomplis~ents and great personal \.\;o~th", \Il~th a gentleman \'lho \Vas "one 
ot Vance county's most WIdely kno\'lIl and popular CItIzens. II 

The Capeharts soon moved to Raleigh and built a new house on North Wilmington Street. 
(NoR.) Shortly afterwards, however, on January 5, 1899, B. A. Capehart died of paralysis 
suffered while hunting. A local paper eulogized him as "a man of intelligence and 
influence, a lover of his church (the Protestant Episcopal Church) and an influential 
worker for every good. He possessed all the elegance and refinement of a tYlle Christian 
gentleman. He was social and convivial in his nature and sincere in his attachments " 
His family and friends honored him by placing a brass wal19plaque with an amethyst cross 
in the St. James Episcopal Church, where it remains today. . 

The Capehart tract remained in the family. Before his death, B. A. Capehart deeded 
a large part of his tract, including the house, to his son, Anthony L. Capehart, who 
continued to farm it10 Lucy Capehart, widow of B. A, Capehart, maintained an interest in 
the land lmtil 1906. In that year the Wake COlmty Superior Court heard a "Petition to 
Sell Lands at Private Sale and Re-invest" on behalf of the three minor children of A. L 
Capehart. The court appointed a commissioner, M. Gatling, to sell a 400 acre tract of 
1';ake County land Oiilled by Capehart, and use the proceeds to purchase an equivalent tract 
in Vance County, 'which turned out to be land containing the Capehart residence. 
CCJil~: :issioner Gatling described the land as be "far more valuable that the tract sold, 
that U.pC'i it is a fine residence of ten or )1101'e roens, stables outhouses, a pacJdl0use, 
and several other valuable buildings." Lucy Capehart gave up her remaining interest in 
the house to the children. A Vance County deed conrillns that A. L. Capehart did sell 
this land to his children, subject to their coming of age When11he three children did 
come age, in 1920, they deeded the land back to their father 
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It is uncertain when or where A. L. Capehart died, although he does appear on 
the Vance County tax rolls as late as 1925. The property remained in the Capehart 
family until 1941, when Lillian Capehart, the widow of A. L Capehart, deeded it to 12 
l\1a.rgaret Mi tehell. Mi tchell willed the land to JOM Davis, the present Oi'Jner, in 1960 .. 

FOOTNOTES 

1Granville COlmty Deeds, Book 10, p. 251, Book 14, p. 235; Sixth Census of the 
United States, 1840, Granville County, North Carolina, Slave Schedule 

2Granville County Wills, Book 11, ppm 502-504; Seventh Census of the United States, 
1850, Granville County, North Carolina, Population Schedule, hereinafter cited as 
Granville County Census, 1850. John S. Eaton should not be confused with John Henry 
Eaton (1787-1856), a native of Halifax County, who emigrated from North Carolina and 
became a governor of Florida, a U. S. senator from Tennessee, and secretary of \var in 
the Jackson administration. 

3Granvi1le COlmty Census, 1850, Population Schedule, Slave Schedule; Granville 
COLmty Index to Harriages, 149-1868,. p. 46; Protestant Episcopal Church, North Carolina 
Diocese, Journal of Convention (Fayetteville, Edward J. Hale and Sons), 1852, p. 31; 
1853, P 6; 1856, p. 8, 1857, p. 7; hereinafter cited as Protestant Episcopal Cmlrch. 

4Granville County Deeds, Book 21, p. 450. 

5Alumni History of the University of North Carolina (General Alumni Association, 
Durham, N.C., second editlon, 1924), 98; Protestand Episcopal Church, 1858, p. 10; 
Louis H. ~1anarin (compiler), North Carolina Troops, 1861-1865, A Roster CRaleigh, State 
Department of Archives and History, 1966), II, 644. 

6Samue1 Thomas Peace, Zeb t s Black Baby, Vance COlmty, North Carolina, a Short History}: 
(Durham, Seeman Printery, 1955), 47, hereinafter cited as Peace, Zeb's Black Baby; 
Protestant Episcopal Church, 1864, p. 6; 1865, p. 6. 

7 Ninth Census of the United States, 1870, Granville COlmty, North Carolina, 
Agricultural Schedule; Peace, Zeb's Black Baby, p. 21. 

8Samuel A. Ashe and others (eels.)., Biographical History of ?~orth Carolina: From­
Colonial Times to the Present (Greensboro, Charles L. Van Foppen, 8 volu"1es, 1905-1917), 
V, p. 275-286; Henderson Gold Leaf, February 21, 1895 The death date of M. A. Capehart, 
first wife of B. A. Capehart, is Lmcertain 

9Oxford Public Ledger, January 6, 1899. 
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IDvance County Deeds, Book 9, p. 353. Be A. Capehart apparently left no will. It 
is lfficlear how his widow obtained her share of the estate. 

11Wake County Superior Court, Orders and Decrees, XII, p. 156-168; Vance County 
Deeds, Book 39, p. 416, Book, 100, p. 130. 

12yance County Tax Scrolls, 1925; Vance COlmty Deeds, Book 221, p. 255; Vance 
County Wills, Book 368, p. 82. 
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